
 

 
 
 
 
Summons to Meeting 
 
Monday 10 February 2020 
 

Standards Committee 
 

Tuesday 18 February 2020, 10.00 am 
 

Council Chamber - Allerdale House, Workington 
 

Membership: 
  
Councillor Owen Martin (Chair) Councillor Peter Gaston (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Malcolm Grainger Councillor Peter Kendall 
Councillor Andrew Semple Councillor Will Wilkinson 
Councillor Lynda Williams  
 

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. If you have any questions 
or queries contact Lee Jardine on 01900 702502. 

 

Agenda 
 
1. Minutes  (Pages 3 - 8) 
 

 To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 10 September 
2019 

  

2. Apologies for Absence   
 

3. Declaration of interests   
 

 Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other 
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to 
any item on the agenda, in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct. 

  

4. Questions   
 

 To answer questions from members of the public – submitted in writing or by 
electronic mail no later than 5.00pm, 2 working days before the meeting. 

  

5. Work Programme 2019/20  (Pages 9 - 10) 
 

6. Allerdale Borough Council’s Code of Conduct and Arrangements for 



dealing with standards allegations under the Localism Act 2011   
 

 Verbal Update 
  

7. To Review the Process and Guidance for Gifts and Hospitality for Members  
(Pages 11 - 18) 

 

8. To review the operation and efficiency of the Whistle blowing Policy  
(Pages 19 - 28) 

 

9. To review the Code of Conduct for Members and Officers Dealing with 
Planning Matters  (Pages 29 - 42) 

 

10. To receive an update on Member Training Programmes   
 

 Verbal Update 
  

11. Review of Complaints (October 2019 - January 2020)   
 

 Verbal Update 
  

 
 

 
 
Monitoring Officer 
 

 
Date of Next Meeting: 

 
To be Confirmed 

 
 



At a meeting of the Standards Committee held in Council Chamber - Allerdale House, 
Workington on Tuesday 10 September 2019 at 2.00 pm 
 
Members 
 
Councillor Owen Martin (Chair) Councillor Peter Gaston (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor John Crouch Councillor Joan Ellis 
Councillor Will Wilkinson Councillor Lynda Williams 
 
Apologies for absence were received from  Councillor Malcolm Grainger, Councillor 
Peter Kendall and Councillor Andrew Semple 
 
Staff Present 
 
L Jardine, S Sewell, E Thompson and L Tomlinson 
 
Also Present 
 
Paul Burns 
 

 
134. Declaration of interests  

 
10. Investigation. 

Councillor Owen Martin; Other Interest; had knowledge of the 
investigation 

 
10. Investigation. 
 Councillor Peter Gaston; Other Interest; knows the complainee 
 

135. Questions  
 
None received. 
 

136. Work Programme 2019/20  
 
The Monitoring Officer presented the draft work programme for Standards 
Committee, providing details of the items that make up the work programme for 
2019/20. 
 
Members noted the contents of the work programme. 
 

137. Local Government Ethical Standards  
 
The Monitoring Officer provided members with an overview of the report from 
the Committee on Standards in Public Life from January 2019. 
 
The report made several recommendations to local authorities, and listed best 
practices that should also be adopted. The Monitoring Officer put forward to 
members suggested amendments to the code of conduct in relation to bullying 
and harassment (best practices 1 and 2). 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



The Monitoring Officer then confirmed that Allerdale would adopt the best 
practices as recommended through the 2019/20 work programme. 
 
Members noted the report and that the Monitoring Officer had considered the 
list of best practice recommendations, that they had discussed with Cumbrian 
Monitoring Officers and CALC potential revisions to the existing code of conduct 
and guidance to take account of the recommendations. 
 
Members also agreed to recommend to Council changes to the Code of 
Conduct as set out in the report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

138. Allerdale Borough Council’s Code of Conduct and Arrangements for 
dealing with standards allegations under the Localism Act 2011  
 
The Monitoring Officer provided members with an overview on how the Council 
handles code of conduct complaints. The officer also explained how further 
advice and guidance is provided in the ‘arrangements for dealing with standards 
allegations’ and ‘guidance on code of conduct’ documents. 
 
Members were advised that an independent review had been completed into 
the procedures that Allerdale have in place for handling complaints that may 
have breached the code of conduct. The review was carried out by Hoey 
Ainscough Associates Ltd, and as part of the review officers, parish clerks, 
parish councillors, and district councillors provided contributions. The review 
laid down four criteria for a successful standards process: 
 

a) It should enhance the reputation of the Council  through demonstrating 
that there is a culture of high standards and that any lapse from high 
standards in individual cases will be dealt with fairly, effectively and 
efficiently. 

b) It should ensure that the process is transparent and accountable, so that 
the public can see that misconduct has been dealt with, and members 
are able to demonstrate, where appropriate, that their name has been 
fairly cleared. 

c) It should have independent rigour and be free from party political 
interference; and 

d) It should comply with any legal requirements and ensure that members 
have the right to a fair hearing. 

 
The review found that Allerdale standards procedures are typical and operate 
with good practice. 
 
The review however did make recommendations that have been made to 
streamline and improve the process making it more efficient and transparent 
whilst promoting standards within Allerdale. 

Page 4



 
The Monitoring Officer advised that the recommendations would be 
implemented through the work programme. 
 
Members then considered the recommendations in relation to the Code of 
Conduct that 
 

1. Failure to cooperate with a standards investigation should be added 

as a potential breach of the Code. (Para 95) 

 
2. The Council should consider whether the Code should say that 

members must have regard to the social media policy (Para 96) 

 

3. The interests’ provisions in the Allerdale Code should be expanded 

to make it clear that members should not make decisions where 

matters relate to or clearly affect their family members or close 

associates. (Para 106) 

 
4. Any changes made to the Allerdale Code should be effectively 

communicated and explained to the parish council sector. (Para 

107) 

 
The Monitoring Officer advised that the Cumbria Monitoring Officer Group 
considered that the interests provisions don’t need expanded as they are 
covered by common law bias. The Monitoring Officer requested that Members 
consider whether they wish to include it and have a different code to the other 
Cumbrian authorities Members considered whether  the interests provisions 
should be expanded as per the recommendation and instructed officers to 
clarify the Cumbrian authorities position and report back to the next meeting of 
the standards committee.  
 
The Members then approved the recommendations as per the officer’s report as 
follows: 
 

a) The members considered the review of Allerdale Borough Councils 
Procedures for Handling Complaints that Members have breached the 
Code of Conduct attached as Appendix 1 

b) The members noted the amendments to the Arrangements attached as 
Appendix 2  

c) The members, having considered the recommendations in relation to the 
Code of Conduct, agreed to re-consider the recommendations following 
comments from the Cumbrian Monitoring Officer Group. 

 
139. Member/Officer Protocol  

 
The Monitoring Officer presented this item, providing an overview of the 
member/officer protocol. Members were advised that the protocol was a guide 
to good relationships between officers and members and it contains details on 
what is and is not expected of each other. 
 

Page 5



The Monitoring Officer then clarified the roles of the Head of Paid Service, 
Section 151 Officer and the Monitoring Officer. 
 
Members noted the draft protocol for member/officer relations and 
recommended to the Council that the protocol is adopted. 
 

140. Update on Complaints  
 
The Deputy Monitoring Officer provided a verbal summary to members of the 
code of conduct complaints that have been received. 
 
Members were advised that a lot of complaints had been received in relation to 
member comments and actions on social media, acknowledging however that 
this was not a local issue but a national theme within local government.  
 
Members were informed that complaints have increased since the May 2019 
election; this mainly has been due to the increased number of new members 
and their lack of knowledge and inexperience towards Council rules and 
procedures. To assist members several training sessions have been delivered 
on various topics, including social media, code of conduct and constitutional 
rules. 
 
Members asked questions of the Monitoring Officers and debate ensued in 
relation to training and development and the selection of candidates within their 
respective groups. 
 
Members noted the update on complaints. 
 

141. Update on Independent Person Recruitment  
 
The Monitoring Officer explained the role of the Independent Person and how 
they contribute to the standards procedure.  
 
Following the review by Hoey Ainscough Associates it was recommended that 
Allerdale Borough Council appoints two Independent Persons. 
 
The Monitoring Officer then recommended that Paul Burns was to stay as an 
Independent Person and that Tom Cook would be appointed as a second 
Independent Person. 
 
Members agreed the recommendations which will be put to Council for 
approval. 
 

 Councillor Owen Martin left the Meeting   
  

 
142. Investigation  

 
Councillor Gaston became Chair as Cllr Martin left the meeting. 
 
The Monitoring Officer provided members with the outcome of an investigation 
that had been carried out by an independent investigator. 

Page 6



 
Following interviews with all parties and witnesses, the investigator concluded 
that there was insufficient evidence to proceed further. 
 
Members noted the report and the decision of the Monitoring Officer taken in 
consultation with the Independent Person that no further action be taken. 
 
 
 
 

The meeting closed at 3.20 pm 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Work Programme for Standards Committee 2019/20 

 

Programme of Work Meeting Date 

To review the operation and efficacy of the 
Whistleblowing Policy 
 

18th February 2020 

To review the Process and Guidance for Gifts and 
Hospitality for Members 
 

18th February 2020 

To receive an update on Member Training 
Programmes 

18th February 2020 

Review of Complaints (Oct – Jan) 
 

18th February 2020 

To review the Planning Protocol/Guidance for 
Members 

18th February 2020 

To review the process and guidance for 
Members register of interests 
 

March 2020 

To review the operation and efficiency of the 
Local Code of Corporate Governance 
 

March 2020 

Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 March 2020 

Update of CSPL Recommendations March 2020 

 
 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Standards Committee – 18 February 2020 
 

Members Gifts and Hospitality Register 
 

  
The Reason for the Decision To review the guidance on the register of 

gifts and hospitality for members as part 
of a review of standards arrangements 
and the Code of Conduct  

  
Recommendations 1. That members consider the 

revised guidance on the register of 
gifts and hospitality for members 
and provide any comments/further 
amendments as they see 
necessary and; 

2. Recommend to Council that the 
guidance is adopted. 

  
Financial /  Resource Implications There are no financial or resource 

implications arising from this report 
  
Legal / Governance Implications Currently, there is no legal requirement 

for local authorities to maintain a gifts 
and hospitality register, nor for individual 
councillors to register or declare gifts and 
hospitality they receive as part of their 
role. It is however common practice for 
local authorities to develop local 
protocols to supplement the Members’ 
Code of Conduct. 

  
Community Safety Implications There are no community safety 

implications arising from this report 
  
Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications 

There no health and safety implications 
arising from this report.  
Failure to have up to date codes and 
protocols could lead to inappropriate 
conduct which could in turn undermine 
council decision making with the potential 
for legal challenge and reputational 
damage 

  
Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed 

The Equality Duty has been considered 

  
Wards Affected All 

Page 11

Agenda Item 7



  
The contribution this decision would 
make to the Council’s priorities 

The Constitution, which includes the 
codes of practice and protocols, support 
all of the Council’s objectives as they 
provide the governance and standards 
framework for all decisions, strategic and 
operational. 
 

Is this a Key Decision No 
  
Portfolio Holder Councillor Marion Fitzgerald 
 
Lead Officer  

 
Gayle Roach, Democratic and Support 
Services Manager 
gayle.roach@allerdale.gov.uk 

Report Implications 
 
Community Safety N Financial N 

Legal Y Partnership Y 

Social Inclusion N Asset Management N 

Equality Duty N Health and Safety N 

Employment (internal) N Employment  

(external to the Council) 

N 

 
Background Papers – Allerdale Borough Councils Code of Conduct 
 
 
1.0 Background 
 
1.1 This guidance sets out members’ obligations to declare gifts and hospitality 

received in their capacity as members of the Council and to provide guidance 
on those obligations.  
 

1.2 Allerdale Borough Council members must register any gifts or hospitality 
worth over £50 that they receive in connection with their official duties as a 
Member. 
 

1.3 All registrations of gifts or hospitality must be made within 28 days of the date 
it was received. Members must declare the value (or estimated value) and 
details of the gift or hospitality received on the electronic form, as well as a 
justification for accepting the gift/hospitality. 
 

1.4 The register is available to the public in the same way as the register of 
disclosable pecuniary interests is. It is open for inspection and also available 
on the Council’s website. 
 

2.0 Legal Position and Risks 

Page 12

mailto:gayle.roach@allerdale.gov.uk


 
2.1 Currently, there is no legal requirement for local authorities to maintain a gifts 

and hospitality register, nor for individual councillors to register or declare gifts 
and hospitality they receive as part of their role. 

 
2.2 It is common practice for local authorities to develop local guidance and 

protocols to supplement the Members’ Code of Conduct, particularly with 
regard to the discharge by members of certain aspects of the Council’s 
functions, which may give rise to uncertainties in respect of personal or 
prejudicial interests. 

 
2.3 The Bribery Act 2010, which came into force on 1 July 2011, makes it an 

offence to offer, promise or give a bribe. The Act also makes it an offence to 
request, agree to receive, or accept a bribe. A corporate offence is committed 
where a commercial organisation fails to prevent bribery that is intended to 
obtain or retain business, or an advantage in the conduct of business, for the 
organisation. 

 
2.4 Failure to declare any gifts or hospitality to the value of £50 or more amounts 

to a breach of the Council’s Code of Conduct and a complaint can be reported 
to the Monitoring Officer or the Standards Committee and dealt with in 
accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct Complaints Procedure. 

 
2.5 It is also a breach of the Code of Conduct for members to conduct themselves 

in a manner which could reasonably be regarded as bringing their office or the 
Council into disrepute, or for a member to use or attempt to use their position 
as a Member improperly to confer on, or secure for themselves or any other 
person, an advantage or disadvantage. 

 
3.0 Finance/resource implications 
 
3.1 There are no financial or resource implications to this report.  
 
4.0 Recommendations 
 
4.1 That members consider the revised guidance on the register of gifts and 

hospitality for members and provide any comments/further amendments as 
they see necessary and; 

 
4.2 Recommend to Council that the guidance is adopted 
 
 

Sharon Sewell 
Head of Governance and Regulatory Services 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Allerdale Borough Council 

Members Gifts and Hospitality Register Guidance 

 

 

Members Gifts and Hospitality 

1. The registration requirement in the Code of Conduct is limited to gifts or 
hospitality worth £50.00 or more. 

2. You must register the gift or hospitality and its source within 28 days of 
receiving it. The council operates an electronic register of gifts and hospitality 
which can be found on the Allerdale Intranet page. 

3. You should ask yourself would I have been given this if I was not on the 
Council. If you are in doubt as to the motive behind a gift or hospitality, we 
recommend that you register it or speak to the Monitoring Officer or your 
parish clerk where appropriate. 

4. You do not need to register gifts and hospitality which are not related to your 
role as a member, such as Christmas gifts from your friends and family, or 
gifts which you do not accept.  However, you should always register a gift or 
hospitality if it could be perceived as something given to you because of your 
position or if your authority requires you to. 

 

General Principle 

5. The decision for you in every case is whether or not it is appropriate to accept 
any gift or hospitality that might be offered to you, having regard to how it 
might be perceived by an ordinary member of the public. 

6. To refuse may cause misunderstanding or offence. However, to accept may 
give rise to questions of impropriety or conflict of interest, which are likely to 
be of more significance to you when making your decision. 

7. When you need to decide whether to accept hospitality, you must ask yourself 
some basic questions, for example:  

 Is it a benefit to the Council in accepting the invitation?  

 Is the entertainment lavish?  

 Are you accepting too much hospitality from the same source?  

 Whether just your attendance at an event might be open to interpretation 
as a signal of support? 

8. Particular care should be taken in relation to gifts and hospitality offered by 
current or potential: 

 Contractors for the Council 

 Developers within the district 

Page 15



 Businesses associated with the district. 

9. The only proper reason for accepting any gift or hospitality is that you 
reasonably believe that there may be a benefit for the authority. 

10. No hard and fast rules can be laid down to cover every circumstance as to 
what is appropriate or inappropriate. In any case of doubt, advice should be 
sought from the Monitoring Officer. 

11. You should register any offer of gift and/or hospitality over £50 which you 
have declined, since this protects both your position and that of the Council. 

 

Legal Position & general caution 

12. The Bribery Act 2010 provides that if you accept any gift, loan, fee, reward or 
advantage whatsoever as an inducement or reward for doing or forbearing to 
do anything in respect of any matter or transaction in which the Council is 
concerned, you commit a criminal offence carrying a maximum term of 
imprisonment of 10 years or a fine or both. 

13. The fundamental principle must always be that any offer of a gift or hospitality 
should be treated with great care. 

14. Your prime duty as a Member is to ensure that there is no conflict of interest 
in the performance of your duties. 

15. Treat with caution any gift or hospitality that is made to you personally. Your 
personal reputation and that of the Council can be seriously jeopardised by 
the inappropriate acceptance by you of a gift or hospitality. 

16. You should consider carefully all the circumstances surrounding the offer of a 
gift or hospitality. The scale, amount of the offer and the potential frequency 
and source are relevant factors. 

17. Also be sensitive to the timing of the offer in relation to decisions which the 
Council may be taking, affecting those making the offer. 

18. You should avoid hospitality in situations where you would be the sole guest 
or at least treat such situations with particular care. 

19. It is a criminal offence corruptly to solicit or receive any gift, reward or 
advantage as an inducement to doing, or forbearing to do anything, in respect 
of any transaction involving the Council. The onus would be on you to 
disprove corruption in relation to the receipt of a gift or hospitality from a 
person holding or seeking to obtain a contract from the Council. 

20. Cash or monetary gifts should always be refused without exception and the 
refusal notified to the Monitoring Officer 

 

 

Page 16



Hospitality 

21. Hospitality is sometimes offered to representatives of the Council and may be 
accepted at an official level because it is reasonable in the circumstances. 
However, where hospitality is offered to a member as an individual, special 
caution is needed, especially where the host is seeking to do business with 
the Council or to obtain a decision from it. 

22. Examples of unacceptable hospitality are: 

- Use of company flat, hotel suite, room or car; 

- Extravagant and/or frequent meals; 

- Holidays, weekend breaks etc; 

- Tickets for a sporting event, theatre etc. 

23. Examples of hospitality which may be accepted include:  

- A working meal provided to allow the Council to discuss, or to continue 
to discuss, business with an organisation. The hospitality may be 
provided by organisations with whom the council does business; 

- Hospitality offered at an event where a member needs to receive or give 
information or represent the Council; 

- An invitation from an established or prospective contractor/partner to a 
product/service demonstration where other local authorities are 
represented; 

- An invitation to attend a function of a recognised professional 
association or institute where the invitation is made by a private 
organisation; 

- Offers of hospitality at a social/sporting occasion if these are genuinely 
part of the life of the community, or the Council should be seen to be 
represented and where there is a clear benefit to the Council and/or to 
the community. It should also be established that there is no conflict of 
interest. 

24. When a particular person or body has a matter currently in issue with the 
Council, e.g. an arbitration arising from a contract, then common sense 
dictates that offers of hospitality should be refused, even if in normal times 
they could be accepted. 

 

What if I do not know the value of a gift or hospitality? 

25. The general rule is, if in doubt as to the value of a gift or hospitality, you 
should register it, as a matter of good practice and in accordance with the 
principles of openness and accountability in public life. 

26. You may have to estimate how much a gift or hospitality is worth. 

Page 17



Where hospitality is concerned, you can disregard catering on-costs and other 
overheads, e.g. staff and room hire. If the sandwiches or your meal, including 
drinks and alcohol, would cost £50 in a comparable establishment providing 
food of comparable quality, register it. 

27. Also, an accumulation of small gifts you received from the same source over a 
short period that add up to £50 or more should be registered. 

 

The Mayor 

28. There are no special rules for those who serve as Mayor. 

29. Any gift or hospitality made to the authority, for example a commemorative 
plaque which is kept on display in the authority’s offices, will be registered by 
the authority for audit purposes. 

30. The Mayor will attend social functions and these are recorded in the Mayoral 
Diary and documented. 

31. Where the Mayor is invited to social functions or gifted with a present in the 
capacity of the “Mayor” he/she will not be required to register the gift(s) or 
hospitality received/declined or accepted in this role. Where the member 
acting as Mayor, receives any gifts or hospitality in his or her capacity as 
member, there is a requirement to register any such gifts and hospitality. The 
question the Mayor may ask themselves is “Would I have received this gift or 
hospitality even if I were not the mayor?” If the answer is yes then it must be 
registered. 

Page 18



Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Standards Committee – 18 February 2020 
 

  
The Reason for the Decision       To present the Committee of the updated 

Whistleblowing Policy.  
  
Summary of options considered  To comment on the agreed Whistleblowing 

Policy. 
  
Recommendations That the Whistleblowing Policy be noted 

subject to any additional comments the 
Committee may wish to make. 

  
Financial /  Resource Implications No additional resource required to deliver 

this. 
  
Legal / Governance Implications The policy has been completed in line with 

the statutory requirements and professional 
guidance recommendations. 

  
Community Safety Implications       None directly. 
  
Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications 

      None directly. 

  
Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed 

      An Equality Impact Assessment has not been 
completed as the report concerns internal 
administrative procedures. 

  
Wards Affected       None directly. 
  
The contribution this decision would 
make to the Council’s priorities 

      This will contribute to the achievement of all 
council plan priority areas. 

  
Is this a Key Decision       No 
  
Portfolio Holder       Cllr John Cook 
  
Lead Officer  Paula McKenzie 

Assurance Risk and Audit Officer 
(01900) 702987 

      paula.mckenzie@allerdale.gov.uk 
 
 

 
Report Implications (Please delete where applicable) 

 
Community Safety N Employment (external to the Council) N 

Financial  N Employment (internal) N 

Page 19

Agenda Item 8



Legal N Partnership N 

Social Inclusion N Asset Management N 

Equality Duty N Health and Safety N 

 
1.0 Introduction 

 
1.1 The Council has a responsibility to provide corporate governance 

arrangements that meet the aims and objectives of Delivering Good 
Governance in the Local Government Framework. 

 
1.2 To assist in achieving these aims and objectives the council currently has in 

place a Whistleblowing Policy which has been subject to a review, prior to this 

the Whistleblowing Policy was last reviewed in 2015, the revised policy is 
presented to the Standards Committee for comments. The Whistleblowing 
Policy was drafted by Assurance Risk and Audit and based on best practice 
and experience a draft of which is attached for your consideration as appendix 
A. 

 
2.0     Finance/Resource Implications 
 
2.1  No additional resource is required to deliver this.  
 
3.0  Legal Implications and Risks 
 
3.1 Acceptance of this report has no legal, health and safety or risk management 

implications. 
 
4.0     Recommendations 
 
4.1 That the Whistleblowing Policy is noted subject to any additional information 

that the Standards Committee may require. 
 
 
 

Paula McKenzie 
Assurance Risk and Audit Officer 

Page 20



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Whistleblowing Policy 

(Confidential Reporting Code) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Assurance, Risk and Audit 

Allerdale – A great place to live, work and visit 

 
Page 21



2 

 

Contents 
 
Whistleblowing Policy 
(Confidential Reporting Code) 
 
 

1. Introduction        3 
 

2. What is whistleblowing?      3 
 
3. Confidentiality and Anonymity    4 
 
4. How to raise a concern       4 
 
5. How the Council will respond     5 
 
6. The Responsible Officer      6 
 
7. How the matter can be taken further   6 
 
8. The Law        6 

   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



3 

 

1. Introduction 
 
Allerdale Borough Council is committed to the highest possible standards of openness, 
probity and accountability in carrying out its functions and staff are expected to 
maintain these high standards.  In line with this commitment we expect employees, 
and others that we deal with, who have serious concerns about any aspect of the 
Council’s work, to be able to voice these concerns without fear of reprisal.  
 
Employees are often the first to realise that there may be something seriously wrong, 
however may not express their concerns because they feel that they would be disloyal 
to their colleagues or the Council or they may fear harassment or victimisation.  The 
aim of this policy is to allow employees to act upon concerns, provide avenues to do 
so and reassure them that they will be protected from possible reprisals and 
victimisation. 
 
This policy applies to all employees including those designated as casual, temporary, 
authorised volunteers or on work experience.  It also covers contractors working for 
the Council, such as self-employed consultants, agency staff, builders and outsourced 
functions and managers are responsible for making these workers and service users 
aware of this policy.  The policy also applies to elected Members. 
 
The Council’s Counter Corruption Framework includes a Response Plan that sets out 
how suspicions of fraud, bribery, corruption, irregularity and malpractice can be 
reported and dealt with and should be read in conjunction with this policy.  
 
 

2. What is whistleblowing? 
 
Whistleblowing is the term used when a worker passes on information concerning 
suspected wrongdoing or dangers in relation to any activities that the Council is 
engaged in.  The wrongdoing will usually (although not necessarily) be something that 
they have witnessed at work. 
 
To be covered by whistleblowing law, any worker who makes a disclosure must 
reasonably believe that they are acting in the public interest and that the 
wrongdoing/practice falls into the following categories: 

 criminal offence  

 a failure to comply with an obligation set out in law 

 miscarriages of justice  

 endangering of someone’s health and safety 

 damage to the environment 

 covering up wrongdoing in the above categories 

Whistleblowing is not to be used for raising complaints relating to employees own 
personal circumstances or treatment at work, in these cases they should refer to the 
Fair Treatment Policy. 

Whistleblowing law is located in the Employment Rights Act 1996 (as amended by the 
Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 (PIDA)).  

Page 23



4 

 

 
 

3. Confidentiality and Anonymity  
 
There may be good reasons why an employee may wish for their identity to remain 
confidential, and if you wish to raise a concern anonymously every effort will be made 
to keep your identity secret unless it is specifically needed for the investigation or the 
law requires us to do so.  Where the disclosure of your identity is required by law, you 
will be advised of the implications of this and supported through the process.  
Completely anonymous disclosures can be difficult to investigate and we would 
encourage you to put your name to your concern; when making a disclosure 
anonymously, it can be more difficult for you to qualify for the protections of a 
whistleblower as there would be no documentary evidence for any employment 
tribunal linking you to the disclosure. 
 
If you believe what you are reporting is true, we will make every effort to protect your 
identity should you report a concern, however if an allegation is made frivolously, 
maliciously or for personal gain, then disciplinary action may be taken.  Where an 
allegation is made in good faith, but not then confirmed by an investigation, no action 
will be taken again you.  Any investigation into reported suspicions of potential 
malpractice will not influence or be influenced by any disciplinary or redundancy 
procedures that already affects you. 
 
 

4. How to Raise a Concern 
 
You should raise a whistleblowing concern with your immediate manager or Head of 
Service.  If you feel unable to approach them or there are specific reasons why you 
are unable to report to your immediate manager, you should refer the matter to the 
Head of Governance and Regulatory Service or a member of the Assurance, Risk and 
Audit team.  Where you believe that a member of the management team is involved 
you should approach the Head of Governance and Regulatory Service.  When 
reporting a concern, you must advise the person you are reporting it to that you are 
making a disclosure under the Council’s Whistleblowing policy. 
 
Concerns may be raised orally or in writing, providing as much information as you 
can such as: 

 background information and history of the compliant  

 information as to why you are concerned 

 details of any other procedures which you have already used, and what 
happened 

 the names of the employee/members involved and where they work (if 
applicable) 

 dates or periods of time relating to the matter 

 the names and roles of any other employees/members who may support your 
concern 

The earlier you express your concern, the easier it will be to take action, you may find 
it easier if you raise the matter jointly if there is another employee/member who has 

Page 24



5 

 

the same concern, and will support you.  You may bring a companion (e.g. work 
colleague, union representative or professional association representative) to any 
meeting held under this policy.  If you want to raise your concern confidentially, we will 
make every effort to keep your identity secret. 
 
You should not attempt to gather evidence regarding your suspicions as this could 
compromise any subsequent investigation if not done in the right way. However you 
should record details at the time of the incident to assist in the reporting and initial 
enquiries into any instances. 
 
You may obtain advice and or guidance on how to pursue matters of concern from: 
 

Corporate Director:      Tel. 01900 702528 
Head of Governance and Regulatory Services:  Tel. 01900 702887 
Assurance, Risk and Audit Manager:       Tel. 01900 702988 

 

5. How the Council will respond 
 
Once you have told us of your concern we appoint an Investigating Officer who will 
look into your concern to assess initially what action should be taken and determine 
which Council procedure it is appropriate to take.  The Investigating Officer will liaise 
with the person you reported your suspicions to unless you are comfortable in dealing 
with Investigating Officer directly.  In order to protect individuals and those accused of 
possible malpractice, enquiries will be made to decide whether an investigation is 
appropriate; some concerns may be resolved by agreed action and without the need 
for an investigation.  If urgent action is required, however, this will take place before an 
investigation is undertaken. 
 
Where it is decided that the matter should be taken further under Whistleblowing 
procedures, the concern raised may: 

 be investigated by Management with the assistance of the Assurance, Risk and 
Audit team if required, or dealt with through the disciplinary process 

 be referred to the Police, external auditor or other bodies, and / or 

 form the subject of an independent inquiry, 
 
Within ten working days of a concern being raised, the person to whom you reported 
it will write to you: 

 acknowledging that the concern has been received 

 indicating how the matter will be dealt with and by whom 

 giving an estimate of how long it will take to provide a final response 

 informing if any initial enquiries have been made 

 telling you whether further investigations will take place and if not, why not 

 providing you with information on support available to you  

 
We understand the importance of assuring you that the matter has been properly 
addressed and will inform you of the outcome of any investigation subject to legal 
constraints, but you must keep that information confidential. 

Page 25



6 

 

 
The amount of involvement you will have in the response will depend on the nature of 
the matters raised, the potential difficulties involved and the clarity of the information 
provided. If necessary, the Investigating Officer will seek further information from you 
in a way that confidentiality is maintained. 
 

6. The Responsible Officer 
 
The Monitoring Officer (Head of Governance and Regulatory Services) has overall 
responsibility for the maintenance and operation of this policy. That officer maintains 
a record of concerns raised and the outcomes (but in a form which does not 
compromise confidentiality) and will report as necessary to the Audit Committee. 
 

7. How the matter can be taken further 
 
The aim of this policy is to give you the reassurance to report any concerns you may 
have through the internal channels, however, if you are still unhappy after using the 
procedure (and in receiving a response) you are entitled to consider taking your 
concern elsewhere.  Further support is available from: 

 the external auditor, Grant Thornton 

 UNISON Whistleblowing Hotline – 0800 0857 857 

 Protect; whistleblowing charity – 020 7404 6609 

 local Citizens Advice Bureau (Allerdale 01900 604 735) 

 your trade union 

 the Police  

 relevant professional bodies or regulatory organisations 

 a regulatory voluntary organisation 

 independent legal advice 

If you do take the matter outside the Council, you should consider the Data Protection 
Act and ensure that you do not disclose confidential information. (For clarification check 
with the Information Governance and Data Protection Officer). 
 

8. The Law 
 
This Policy has been written with regard to the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998, 
which amends the Employment Rights Acts 1996. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26



7 

 

 
 
 
 

9. The Law 
 

 

Allerdale Borough Council 
Allerdale House 

Workington 
Cumbria CA14 3YJ 

Tel: 0303 123 1702 

www.allerdale.gov.uk 

 
Document reference 

Version 
Date 

 

 

Allerdale Borough Council 

Please phone (0303 123 1702) if you would like a copy of this 
document in a different format 

 
Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28



1 

 

Allerdale Borough Council 

 

Code of Conduct for Members and Officers Dealing with 

Planning Matters 

 

DRAFT – FEBRUARY 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 29

Agenda Item 9



2 

 

1.0 Background 

This Code of Conduct has been adopted by the Allerdale Borough Councils 

Development Panel. The Code has been prepared with reference to the model code 

produced by Lawyers in Local Government, together with the Local Government 

Association guide to probity in planning. 

2.0 Introduction 

The aim of this code is to ensure that in the planning process there are no grounds 

for suggesting that a decision has been biased, partial or not well founded in any 

way. One of the key purposes of the planning system is to regulate the development 

and use of land in the public interest.  

Your role as a Member of the Planning Authority is to make planning decisions 

openly, impartially, with sound judgement and for justifiable reasons. You are a 

democratically accountable decision-taker who has been elected to provide and 

pursue policies. You are entitled to be predisposed to make planning decisions in 

accordance with your political views and policies provided that you have considered 

all material considerations and have given fair consideration to relevant points 

raised. 

2.1 When the code applies 

This code applies to Members at all times when involving themselves in the planning 

process. (This includes when taking part in the decision making meetings of the 

Council in exercising the function of the Planning Authority or when involved on less 

formal occasions, such as meetings with officers or the public and consultative 

meetings.) It applies as equally to planning enforcement matters or site specific 

policy issues as it does to planning applications. 

If you have any doubts about the application of this Code to your own 

circumstances you should seek advice early, from the Monitoring Officer or 

one of their staff, and preferably well before any meeting takes place. 

2.2 Planning Decisions and Legal Challenge 

It is important that decisions made are legally robust, as any challenge (even where 

unsuccessful) leads to increased costs for the Council and prolonged uncertainty for 

developers and local residents. 

The primary requirement for decision makers in planning matters is contained in 

Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 which states, 

‘If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any determination 

to be made under the planning acts the determination must be made in accordance 

with the plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise’ 

Page 30



3 

 

This sets out the primacy of the development plan in decision making with the ability 

to afford weight to other material planning considerations if applicable, such a 

balance being clearly evidenced and reflecting the development plan primacy. If 

decision makers fail to comply with this basic requirement then any decision reached 

is liable to be overturned on appeal or by judicial review. 

In addition public law makes various demands upon decision makers in exercising 

their discretion. These are summarised as follows 

Reasonableness – Decisions must not be such that no rational, properly informed 

authority could reach those conclusions. 

Proper Information- Decisions must only be taken at the conclusion of any matter, 

in consideration of all relevant facts and policy and without reference to irrelevant 

ones. 

Bias – Decisions must be taken fairly and without favour to any person by way of 

unbalanced access or bias. Members must make their decision in the interests of all 

residents of Allerdale rather than just their constituents or those who voted for them. 

3.0 Relationship to Members and Officers Code of Conduct 

 Do apply the rules in the Members Code of Conduct first, which must always 

be complied with. This is both the rules on interest, Disclosable Pecuniary 

Interests (DPIs) and any other interests identified by your Authority, and the 

general rules giving effect to the seven principles of public life: selfishness, 

integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and leadership. 

 Do then apply the rules in this Members Planning Protocol, which seek to 

explain and supplement the Members Code of Conduct and the law on 

decision making for the purposes of planning control. If you do not abide by 

this Members Planning Protocol you may put 

o Allerdale Borough Council at risk of proceedings on the legality of the 

related decision or maladministration; and 

o Yourself at risk (as a member) of being named in a report made to the 

Council or, if the failure is also likely to be a breach of the interest 

provisions of Localism Act 2011, a complaint being made to the police 

to consider criminal proceedings. 

o Yourself at risk (as an officer) of disciplinary proceedings 

4.0 Development Panel and Interests under the Members Code of Conduct 

 Do disclose the existence and nature of your interest as required by the 

Members Code of Conduct. 

Page 31



4 

 

 Do take into account when approaching a decision that the Principle of 

Integrity is defined in terms that: 

‘Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation 

to people or organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in 

their work. They should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or 

other material benefits for themselves, their family or their friends. They must 

declare and resolve any interests and relationships’ 

 Do disclose orally the existence and nature of your interest at any relevant 

meeting, including at informal meetings or discussions with officers and/or 

Members. Preferably, disclose your interest at the beginning of the meeting 

and not just at the commencement of discussion on that particular matter. You 

must also declare any interests even if you are not a member of the Panel 

itself but are attending the meeting as an officer or Ward Councillor or in a 

personal capacity. Your oral declaration should clearly set out what your 

interest is. 

 Do then act accordingly. Where your interest is personal and prejudicial; 

o Don’t participate, or give the appearance of trying to participate, in the 

making of any decision on the matter by the planning authority. This 

rule applies to all members and officers. 

o Do leave the room throughout consideration of the matter by the 

Development Panel, or any informal meetings, if the meeting has public 

speaking rights and you intend to make representations in relation to 

that matter you should immediately leave before any debate 

commences. 

o Don’t attempt to influence officers’ or members’ decisions on the 

matter by lobbying or discussion. 

o Don’t as a member try to represent ward/local views, get another 

member to do this instead. 

o Don’t seek or accept any preferential treatment or place yourself in a 

position that could lead the public to think you are receiving preferential 

treatment, because of your position as councillor or officer. This would 

where you have a personal and prejudicial interest in a proposal, using 

your position to discuss that proposal with officers or members when 

other members of the public would not have the same opportunity to do 

so. 

 

Page 32



5 

 

4.1 Officers Interests 

Where your interest is personal and prejudicial; 

 Don’t get involved in the processing of the application. 

 Don’t make or advise on any delegated decision or recommendation to 

members. 

Do consider whether it is appropriate for you to serve on the 

Development Panel or as an officer making delegated decisions if you 

hold substantial and diverse property interests which would require you 

to declare a prejudicial interest on frequent occasions. 

If you are unsure whether to declare an interest, contact the Monitoring 

Officer. 

5.0 Gifts and Hospitality 

 Do not accept gifts and hospitality under any circumstances. If however this is 

unavoidable, it should be ensured that this is of the minimum and its receipt 

declared as soon as possible. All offers of hospitality in excess of £50 whether 

accepted or not, must be entered onto the gifts and hospitality record, within 

28 days of receipt. 

6.0 Fettering Discretion in the Planning Process  

(Natural Justice, Predisposition and Predetermination) 

 Don’t fetter your discretion and therefore restrict your ability to participate in 

planning decision making by making up your mind, or clearly appearing to 

have made up your mind on how you will vote on any planning matter prior to 

formal consideration of the matter at the meeting of the planning authority and 

hearing the officers presentation and evidence and arguments on both sides. 

Fettering your discretion in this way and then taking part in the decision will 

put the Council at risk of a finding of maladministration and of legal 

proceedings on the grounds of there being a danger of bias or 

predetermination or a failure to take into account all of the factors enabling the 

proposal to be considered on merits. A decision is likely to be quashed on 

these grounds.  

 Do remember that when you come to make the decision and vote on a 

proposal you; 

Page 33



6 

 

o Are entitled to have and to have expressed your views on the matter, 

provided you are prepared to reconsider your position in the light of all 

the evidence and arguments; 

o Must keep an open mind and hear all the evidence before you, both the 

officers presentation of the facts and their advice as well as the 

arguments from all sides; 

o Are not required to cast aside views on planning policy you held when 

seeking election or otherwise acting as a Member, in giving fair 

consideration to points raised; 

 Do be aware that you are likely to have fettered your discretion where the 

Council is the landowner, developer, applicant or has another interest in the 

land and you have acted as, or could be perceived as being, a chief advocate 

for the proposal. (This goes beyond joint membership of both the Council and 

the Development Panel, to cover situations where through your significant 

personal involvement or in advocating the proposal you will be, or perceived 

by the public as being, no longer able to act impartially or to determine the 

proposal purely on its planning merits). 

 Don’t speak as a member of the Development Panel or vote on a proposal 

where you have fettered your discretion.  

7.0 Contact with Applicants, objectors, Developers 

 Do refer those who approach you for planning, procedural or technical advice 

to officers. 

 Don’t agree to any formal meeting with applicants, developers or groups of 

objectors where you can avoid it. Where you feel that a formal meeting would 

be useful in clarifying the issues, you should seek to arrange that meeting 

yourself through a request to the Planning and Building Control Manager to 

organise it. The officer(s) will then ensure that those present at the meeting 

are advised from the start that the discussions will not bind the authority to 

any particular course of action, that the meeting is properly recorded on the 

application file and the record of the meeting is disclosed when the application 

is considered by the committee. 

 Do otherwise 

o Follow the Authority’s rules on lobbying; 

o Consider whether or not it would be prudent in the circumstances to 

make notes when contacted; and 

Page 34



7 

 

o Report to the Monitoring Officer any significant contact with the 

applicant and other parties, explaining the nature and purpose of the 

contacts and your involvement in them, and ensure that this is 

recorded on the planning file. 

7.1 Presentations by applicants and developers: 

 Don’t attend a planning presentation without requesting an officer to be 

present. 

 Do ask relevant questions for the purposes of clarifying your understanding of 

the proposals. 

 Do remember that the presentation is not part of the formal process of debate 

and determination of any subsequent application; this will be carried out by 

the Development Panel. 

 Do be aware that a presentation is a form of lobbying and, while you may 

express any view on the merits or otherwise of the proposal presented, you 

should never state how you or other Members would intend to vote at a 

committee. 

8.0 Lobbying  

8.1 Lobbying of Councillors 

 Do explain to those lobbying or attempting to lobby you that, while you can 

listen to what is said, it may subsequently prejudice your impartiality and, 

therefore, your ability to participate in the Development Panel’s decision 

making, to make any sort of promise to vote one way or another or such a firm 

point of view that it amounts to the same thing. 

 Do remember that your overriding duty is to the whole community not just to 

the people in your ward and, taking account of the need to make decisions 

impartially, that you should not improperly favour, or appear to improperly 

favour, any person, company, group or locality. 

 Don’t accept gifts of hospitality from any person involved in or affected by a 

planning proposal. If a degree of hospitality is entirely unavoidable, ensure it 

is of a minimum and its acceptance is declared as soon as possible. 

 Do copy of pass on any lobbying correspondence you receive to the 

Monitoring Officer at the earliest opportunity. 

 Do promptly refer to the Planning and Building Control Manager any offers 

made to you of planning gain or constraint of development, through a 

proposed Section 106 planning obligation or otherwise. 

Page 35



8 

 

 Do inform the Monitoring Officer where you feel you have been exposed to 

undue or excessive lobbying or approaches (including inappropriate offers of 

gifts or hospitality), who will in turn advise the appropriate officers to follow the 

matter up. 

 Do note that, unless you have a disclosable or overriding other personal 

conflict of interest, you will not have fettered your discretion or breached this 

Planning Code through:  

o Listening or receiving viewpoints from residents or other interested 

parties 

o Making comments to residents, interested parties, other Members or 

appropriate officers (making clear that you must keep an open mind 

when it comes to making the decision) 

o Seeking information through appropriate channels 

o Being a vehicle for the expression of opinion of others in your role as a 

Ward Member. 

8.2 Lobbying by Councillors 

 Don’t become a member of, lead or represent an organisation whose primary 

purpose is to lobby to promote or oppose planning proposals unless it is your 

intention to openly campaign on the matter and will therefore step away from 

the Development Panel when it comes to make its decision. 

 Do join the general interest groups which reflect your areas of interest and 

which concentrate on issues beyond particular planning proposals (such as 

heritage trusts, ramblers’ associations or local civic societies), but you should 

normally seek to disclose that interest on the grounds of transparency where 

the organisation has made representation on a particular proposal. 

 Don’t excessively lobby fellow councillors regarding your concerns or views 

nor attempt to persuade them that they should decide how to vote in advance 

of the meeting at which any planning decision is to be taken. 

 Don’t decide or discuss how to vote on any application at any political group 

meeting, or lobby any other Member to do so. Political Group Meetings should 

never dictate how Members should vote on a planning issue. 

 

 

 

Page 36



9 

 

9.0 Planning Applications by Members, Officers or the Council 

9.1 Members 

It is advisable that you: 

 Don’t seek or accept any preferential treatment, or place yourself in a 

position that could lead to the public to think you are receiving preferential 

treatment, because of your position as a councillor. 

 Do note that you are not prevented from seeking to explain and justify a 

proposal in which you may have a conflict of interest to an appropriate 

officer, in person or in writing, but that your role as a councillor may place 

additional limitations on you in representing the proposal in which you 

have a personal interest; and 

 Do notify the Monitoring Officer in writing where it is clear to you that you 

have a disclosable pecuniary interest or other personal conflict of interest 

and note that: 

 You should send the notification no later than the submission of the 

application where you can; 

 The proposal will always be reported to the Development Panel as an agenda 

item and not dealt with by officers under delegated powers; 

 It is advisable that you employ and agent to act on your behalf in respect of 

the proposal when dealing with officers and in public speaking at Committee. 

9.2 The Council 

Any application in respect of Council owned land (whether by the Council or itself or 

a developer) will be dealt with as per standard planning procedures and members of 

the Development Panel and officers must disregard any benefit accruing to the 

authority in making their decision.  

9.3 Officers 

Any officer submitting an application has a clear interest in that application and must 

not get involved in the processing of the application. Applications submitted by 

officers will always be determined by the Development Panel. In all such cases the 

aim must be to ensure that applications are dealt with in the same way as those by 

any other person. This will avoid any suggestion of preferential treatment.  

 

 

Page 37



10 

 

10.0 Site Visits 

 Do try to attend site visits organised by the Council where possible 

 Don’t request a site visit unless you feel it is strictly necessary because; 

o Particular site factors are significant in terms of the weight attached to 

them relative to other factors or the difficulty of their assessment in the 

absence of a site visit; or 

o There are significant policy or precedent implications and specific site 

factors that need to be carefully addressed. 

 Do ensure that you report back to the Development Panel any information 

gained from the site visit that you feel would benefit all Members of the Panel. 

 Do ensure that you treat the site visit only as an opportunity to seek 

information and to observe the site 

 Do ask the officers at the site visit questions or seek clarification from them on 

matters which are relevant. 

 Don’t hear any representations from any other party, with the exception of the 

Ward Members whose address must focus only on site factors and site 

issues. Where you are approached by the applicant or third party, advise 

them that they should make representations in writing to the Authority and 

direct them to or inform the officer present. 

 Don’t express opinions or views 

 Don’t enter a site which is subject to a proposal other than as part of an 

official site visit, even in response to an invitation, as this may give the 

impression of bias unless; 

o You feel it is essential for you to visit the site other than through 

attending the official site visit; 

o You have first spoken to the Planning and Building Control Manager 

about your intention to do so and why (which will be recorded on file); 

and  

o You can ensure you will comply with these good practice rules on site 

visits. 

 Don’t allow members of the public or other parties, including the applicant 

and/or landowner, to communicate with you during the Development Panel 

meeting (orally or in writing) other than through the public participation 

scheme, or through the Chair, as this may give the appearance of bias 

Page 38



11 

 

11.0 Procedure at Development Panel 

Each application will be considered as follows:  

1. The Chair will introduce the item.  
2. The Planning Officer/s will outline the main issues to be considered by the 

Panel.  
3. Objectors who have registered to speak will be invited to present their 

statement. The Panel will have the opportunity to ask questions following the 
presentation.  

4. Supporters who have registered to speak will be invited to present their 
statement. The Panel will have the opportunity to ask questions following the 
presentation.  

5. If the Town or Parish Council has requested to address the Panel they will be 
invited to speak. The Panel will have the opportunity to ask questions 
following the presentation.  

6. If the Ward Councillor has requested to address the Panel they will be invited 
to speak. The Panel will have the opportunity to ask questions following the 
presentation.  

7. If the applicant or their representative has requested to address the Panel 
they will be invited to speak. The Panel will have the opportunity to ask 
questions following the presentation.  

8. The Chair will ask the Panel if they have any questions for officers.  
9. The Panel will consider the application proposals.  
10. The Panel will vote on the application.  
11. The Chair will confirm the Panel’s decision  

 

12.0 Conduct at Development Panel Meeting 

 Don’t allow members of the public to communicate with you during the 

Development Panel meeting (orally or in writing) other than through the public 

participation scheme, or through the Chair, as this may give the appearance 

of bias 

 Do ask questions of speakers and officers relating to planning matters only 

 Don’t propose any motion or share debate until all evidence/facts have been 

presented and heard. 

 Do ensure that you comply with the Councils Public Participation Scheme 

 Do raise questions to officers or speakers via the Chair 

 Do maintain professionalism throughout the Development Panel meeting. 

In order to vote on an agenda item at Development Panel, a Member must be 

present in the room for the entirety of the debate and consideration of that 

item. 

Page 39



12 

 

13.0 Officers’ Report 

 Reports should be accurate and should include the substance of any 

objections and other responses received to the consultation.  

 Relevant information should include a clear assessment against the relevant 

development plan policies, any local finance considerations, and any other 

material planning considerations including the National Planning Policy 

Framework.  

 Reports should have a written recommendation for a decision to be made.  

 Reports should contain technical appraisals which clearly justify the 

recommendation.  

 If the report’s recommendation is contrary to the provisions of Local Plan, the 

material considerations which justify the departure must be clearly stated. 

This is not only good practice, but also failure to do so may constitute 

maladministration or give rise to a Judicial Review challenge on the grounds 

that the decision was not taken in accordance with the provisions of the 

development plan and the Council’s statutory duty under s38(6) of the 

Planning and Compensation Act 2004 and s70 of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990.  

 Any oral updates or changes to the report should be recorded. 

14.0 Decision Making 

 Do ensure that, if you request a proposal to go before the Development Panel 

rather than be determined through officer delegation, that your planning 

reasons are recorded. 

 Do come to the meetings with an open mind and demonstrate that you are 

open-minded. 

 Do comply with section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 

2004 and make decisions in accordance with the Development Plan unless 

material considerations indicate otherwise 

 Do come to your decision only after due consideration of all of the information 

reasonably required upon which to base a decision. If you feel there is 

insufficient time to digest new information or that there is simply insufficient 

evidence before you, request further information. If necessary, defer or refuse. 

 Don’t vote or take part in the meetings discussion on a proposal unless you 

have been present to hear the entire debate, including the officer’s 

introduction to the matter. 

Page 40



13 

 

 Do have recorded the reasons for the Panel’s decision to defer any proposal. 

 Do make sure that, if you are proposing, seconding or supporting a decision 

contrary to officer recommendations or the development plan that you clearly 

identify and understand the planning reasons leading to this 

conclusion/decision. These reasons must be given prior to the vote and be 

recorded. Be aware that you may have to justify the resulting decision by 

giving evidence in the event of any challenge 

The use of the party whip is inappropriate to any agenda item and vote. 

A party whip is defined as ‘any instruction given by, or on behalf of, any 

political group to any councillor who is a member of that group as to 

how that councillor shall speak or vote on any matter before the 

development panel, or the application or threat to apply any sanction by 

the group in respect of that councillor should s/he speak or vote in any 

particular manner’.  

15.0 Decisions contrary to Officers Recommendation 

 Do recognise that the law requires that where the Development Plan is 

relevant, decisions should be taken in accordance with it, unless material 

considerations indicate otherwise.  

 Do understand that any decisions contrary to officer’s recommendation must 

include full planning reasons and pressure should not be put on officers to 

prepare such reasons. 

 Do try and obtain advice from planning officers before the Development Panel 

meeting on appropriate conditions or reason which might apply if the motion 

and decision are contrary to the recommendation of officers. 

 Do discuss any areas of concern with the officer’s recommendation and the 

reasons for that with officers in advance of the development panel meeting  

16.0 Dealing with the Media 

If you are contacted by the media on any individual applications, 

 Don't make any comment to the media (or post anything on social media or 
any other public forum) on an individual planning application. This includes 
any application, even if it is unclear if it will go to Development Panel 
 

 Do seek assistance from the Council's communications team and/or relevant 
officer 

 Do consider the likely consequences for the Council of any 
statement/comments you make 

Page 41



14 

 

 Do consider that if you make any public comments you may not be able to 
take part in the debate/discussions surrounding an application at 
Development Panel 

 Do consider all of the above before posting/responding on social media 
 

17.0 Relationship of officers to members 

 Do recognise and respect that members of the Development Panel are 

entitled to reach a different decision from that recommended by officers. 

18.0 Relationship of members to officers 

 Don’t put pressure on officers to put forward a particular recommendation. 

 Do recognise that officers are part of the management structure and only 

discuss a proposal, outside of any arranged meeting, with the Planning and 

Building Control Manager or officers who are authorised by them to deal with 

the proposal at member level. 

 Do recognise and respect that officers involved in the processing and 

determination of planning matters must act in accordance with the Councils 

code of conduct for officers and their professional codes of conduct, primarily 

that Royal Town Planning Institute’s Code of Professional Conduct. 

As a result, planning officer’s views, opinions and recommendations will be 

presented on the basis of their overriding obligation of professional 

independence, which may on occasion be at odds with the views, opinions or 

decisions of the Panel or its members. 

19.0 Training 

 Don’t participate in Development Panel meetings if you have not attended the 

mandatory training prescribed by the Council. 

 Do endeavour to attend other specialist training sessions provided, since 

these will be designed to extend your knowledge of planning law, regulations, 

and procedures. 

 Do participate in the annual review of a sample of planning decisions to 

ensure that Members’ judgements have been based on proper planning 

considerations. 

 

 

Page 42


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	5 Work Programme 2019/20
	7 To Review the Process and Guidance for Gifts and Hospitality for Members
	Members Gifts and Hospitality Guidance V1

	8 To review the operation and efficiency of the Whistle blowing Policy
	Appendix A Whistleblowing Policy

	9 To review the Code of Conduct for Members and Officers Dealing with Planning Matters

